
GRAND JUNCTION CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING 

 
 

March 26, 2003 
 
The City Council of the City of Grand Junction convened into special session on the 26th 
day of March 2003, and President Pro Tem Dennis Kirtland called the meeting to order at 
6:37 p.m. in the City Auditorium.  Those present were Councilmembers Harry Butler, Bill 
McCurry, Dennis Kirtland, Jim Spehar and Janet Terry.  Those absent were President of 
the Council Cindy Enos-Martinez, Councilmember Reford Theobold and City Manager 
Kelly Arnold.  Also present were City Attorney Dan Wilson and City Clerk Stephanie Tuin. 
 
UPDATE TO THE GRAND JUNCTION GROWTH PLAN [File #GPA-2003-018] 
 
A request to adopt amendments to the Future Land Use Map and Goals, Policies and 
Action Items of the 1996 Grand Junction Growth Plan.  Two meetings are scheduled for 
discussion of the update, the second one being April 9th at 6:00 p.m. 
 
Proposed changes to the following maps were discussed at this special meeting: 
 

1. Future Land Use Map  –   “Housekeeping” 

2. Future Land Use Map Changes  –   Discussion Items 

3. Future Land Use Map Changes  –  Pear Park Area 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Kirtland explained to the audience that Council would only discuss the 
items located within the City and excluding properties located outside the City boundaries. 
Planning Manager Kathy Portner concurred.  She noted that there over 60 Housekeeping 
Items, eight Discussion Items, and only one item for discussion in the Pear Park Area that 
the Council needs to consider. 

 
1. Changes to the Future Land Use Map  –  “Housekeeping Items” 

 
Kathy Portner, Planning Manager, explained that only the items appearing in bold on the 
revised handouts would be discussed.  She then gave an overview of the Housekeeping 
Items of the proposed changes to the Future Land Use Map. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Kirtland asked if anyone from the audience wanted to comment on any of 
the items listed on the Housekeeping List. 
 
Tom Volkmann, representing the W.D. Merkel Family Limited Partnership, asked Council 
about Item #22 on the Housekeeping Map and stated that it also refers to Item #18 on the 
Future Land Use Map, Discussion Items.  Council requested he wait and comment on 
these map items when the Discussion Items were discussed. 
 



City Council Special Meeting____________________       ____________March 26, 2003 
 

 2 

Phillip Roskowski, 630 Sage Court, said he favors approval of Housekeeping Map Item 
#22 and agreed that it also relates to Item #18 on the Discussion List.  He said a number 
of people are present to comment on these items.  Ms. Portner recommended that this 
item be moved to the Future Land Use Map, Discussion Items. 
 
Councilmember Spehar moved to accept all items in bold on the Housekeeping List that 
are located within the City limits, except for Item #22, and move Item #22 to the 
Discussion List and include it with Item #18.  Councilmember McCurry seconded the 
motion.  The motion passed by a vote of 5 - 0. 
 
2. Changes to the Future Land Use Map  –  Discussion Items 

 
Kathy Portner, Planning Manager, briefly described each discussion item. 
 
ITEM # 13:  Ms. Portner said the property falls within the Airport Critical Zone and 
uses within this area are limited to agriculture, mining, low-density residential and other 
low density uses.  She said due to the potential danger from possible aircraft crashes, 
and with the limited use of the properties in the area, the Residential Rural designation is 
the most appropriate land use category for this property. 
 
There were no public comments.   
 
Councilmember Spehar moved to adopt Item #13.  Councilmember McCurry seconded 
the motion.  The motion passed by a vote of 5 - 0. 
 
ITEM # 15:    Ms. Portner explained that a mobile home park is located on this 
property and the current zoning is C-1, Light Commercial.  She said approval of this item 
would make the Future Land Use Map consistent with the Zoning Map. 
 
There were no public comments. 
 
Councilmember Terry moved to adopt Item #15.  Councilmember McCurry seconded the 
motion.  The motion passed by a vote of 5 - 0. 
 
ITEM # 16:  Ms. Portner identified the property located between 28 Road and 
28¼ Road on the map and said the developer requests a change from Residential 
Medium with four to eight units per acre to Residential Medium High with eight to twelve 
units per acre.  She said the higher density residential area will provide a good buffer 
zone between the commercially designated properties to the west and the residential 
medium properties to the east. 
 
There were no public comments.   
 



City Council Special Meeting____________________       ____________March 26, 2003 
 

 3 

Councilmember Terry moved to adopt Item #16.  Councilmember Spehar seconded the 
motion.  The motion passed by a vote of 5 - 0. 
 
ITEM # 17:  Ms. Portner pointed out the properties on the map located at 12th 
Street and Horizon Drive.  She explained the proposed zone change of one property from 
Residential High with more than twelve units per acre to Residential Medium with four to 
eight units per acre, and the owner’s request to change the designation from Residential 
High with more than twelve units per acre to a Mixed Use designation.  She said the 
properties are known as the O’Nan Subdivision, that this property is adjacent to 
Residential Medium properties to the southeast and that a Residential Medium 
designation on these properties would finish out the neighborhood. 
 
Tom Volkmann, representing the W.D. Merkel Family Limited Partnership, asked to keep 
the current density of Residential High with more than twelve units per acre as opposed to 
the recommendation for Residential Medium with four to eight units per acre.  He argued 
that the City is not meeting its own Growth Plan Amendment criteria for the change being 
proposed.  
 
Leslie Shafer, 2707 Midway Avenue, said when she attended the meeting in 2000, it was 
then decided that this was a housekeeping error, and the zoning designation would stay 
at four to eight units per acre.  She said that this subdivision is compatible with the 
surrounding area.  She said former Mayor Linda Afman told her that the property was 
platted for 20 homes and that the advent of the Safeway store across Horizon Drive has 
not altered the area.  She then read a section from her subdivision’s covenants that 
allows owners to file a lawsuit against anyone if there are any changes to the zoning 
designation.  Ms. Shafer said there was no reason to increase the density. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Kirtland asked about her use of the word platted and what she meant by 
it.  Ms. Shafer said the development was zoned in 1958 and she held up a copy of the 
original plat to show it to Council. 
 
Joyce Davis, 2703 Midway Avenue, said the neighbors told her that the area would be 
single-family homes.  She said she and her family lived in their house for 18 months 
before they bought the house nine months ago.  She said she does not want any high-
rises or any other commercial development and she wants the area to stay residential. 
 
Karen Steinbock-Fuerst, 2705 Midway Avenue, said she totally agrees with her neighbors 
and said before purchasing their home their realtor verified the residential zoning and she 
was told at that time about the commercial zoning designation across the street.  She said 
they would have never bought their home if the neighborhood would not remain as single- 
family residential. 
 



City Council Special Meeting____________________       ____________March 26, 2003 
 

 4 

Brad Schafer, 2707 Midway Avenue, said he wanted to reiterate all the previous 
comments and said a lot of people present tonight agree with the zoning of Residential 
Medium with four to eight units per acre.  He turned towards the audience and asked the 
group to stand up.  About twelve people stood up. 
 
J. D. Walker, 662 East Cliff Drive, referred to a letter (see attached Exhibit “A”) he mailed 
to Council and the City Attorney regarding the rezoning request from Residential Medium 
to Mixed Use.  He said he received a call yesterday informing him that the owner would 
be withdrawing this request. 
 
Larry Beckner, attorney for the landowner, said he called Mr. Walker and told him that his 
client would not ask for a Mixed Use zoning designation, but at the same time, his client 
doesn’t want the density designation reduced. 
 
Martha May “O’Nan” Ogleberg said she also remembers that meeting in 2000.  She said 
it then was decided that this higher density zoning designation was due to an error made 
earlier and it was decided to return the zoning designation to the original single-family 
zoning. 
 
Councilmember Terry asked Ms. Portner to explain the error.  Ms. Portner said she didn’t 
have an explanation for the original map designation of Residential High.  She said it was 
flagged when the Zoning Map discussion came up because the Growth Plan designation 
did not match the platted neighborhood or the previous zoning.  Ms. Portner said the 
Land Use Map changes are just now coming up. 
 
City Attorney Dan Wilson displayed the Growth Plan amendment criteria.  He said it has 
been the practice that the criteria can be considered, but not all criteria have to be met. 
 
Tom Volkmann said he agrees but that his client is still bound by the existing zoning.  He 
cautioned that just because the Growth Plan Map doesn’t match the Land Use Map it 
doesn’t make the zoning designation wrong. 
 
Councilmember Terry advised that it has been Council’s practice to change the Land Use 
Map to match the Zoning Map.  She said the owner could request a rezoning through the 
regular re-zoning process.  She said she saw no option but to change the map tonight. 
 
Councilmember Spehar concurred and said he supported the recommendation to change 
the designation to Residential Medium with four to eight units per acre from Residential 
High with more than twelve units per acre. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Kirtland asked about the disparity and the procedure Council would have 
to follow to address an application.  
 



City Council Special Meeting____________________       ____________March 26, 2003 
 

 5 

City Attorney Dan Wilson replied that that would be the argument for a rezone and is 
based on the Growth Plan designation. 
 
Councilmember Spehar moved to adopt the request of Item #17 to change the 
designation from Residential High with more than twelve units per acre to Residential 
Medium with four to eight units per acre.  Councilmember Terry seconded the motion.  
The motion passed by a vote of 5 - 0. 
 
ITEM #18  [COMIBNED WITH ITEM #22 FROM THE HOUSKEEPING LIST]: 
 
Ms. Portner reviewed these two items.  She explained that the property is north of the 
canal located between 1st and 7th Street in the Sage Court area.  She said the purpose for 
changing the density is to make the Land Use Map consistent with the Zoning Map.  She 
said the canal was the boundary between the higher and lower densities.  
 
Tom Volkmann representing the W.D. Merkel Family Limited Partnership said his client 
would like to retain the current density designation of the property to preserve the viability 
of the purpose of his purchase.  He said the owner is asking Council that the Residential 
Medium designation with four to eight units per acre be retained rather than to zone the 
property Residential Low with two units per acre. 
 
Carol Bergman, 628 Sage Court, asked Council to approve the Residential Low 
designation with two units per acre.  She said she felt that the current designation is in 
error.  She asked that Council support Staff’s recommendations for Item #18 and Item 
#22.  She referred to criteria #4 of the Growth Plan and stated that there is no high 
density in the area. She said criteria #3 has not been met either, since no character 
change has occurred in the area.   
 
Harry K. Webster, also known as Kenneth, at 629 Sage Court, agreed with Ms. Bergman 
and reiterated that the residents of that area wanted to retain the two units per acre 
designation. 
 
Phillip Roskowski also agreed with Ms. Bergman and said he fully supports Staff’s 
recommendation. 
 
Thea Chase Gilman, 627 Sage Court, said she wants to reiterate what her neighbors 
have said. 
 
Tom Volkmann addressed Council and said he wanted to clarify that his client was 
neither involved in the setting of the Growth Plan designation nor was he involved in the 
Zoning hearings. 
 



City Council Special Meeting____________________       ____________March 26, 2003 
 

 6 

Councilmember Terry moved to approve and accept Item #22 from the Housekeeping List 
and Item #18 from the Discussion List.  Councilmember McCurry seconded the motion.  
The motion passed by a vote of 5 – 0. 
 
ITEM # 19:  Tom Volkmann representing the W.D. Merkel Family Limited 
Partnership stated that he is withdrawing this item per his client’s request. 
 
ITEM # 20:  Ms. Portner reviewed this item.  She identified the property’s location 
as the southwest corner of Patterson Road and 1st Street.  She said the Planning 
Commission recommends approval of a split use designation with a 300-foot depth along 
Patterson Road to be zoned for Commercial and to designate the remainder of the 
property as Residential Medium High with eight to twelve units per acre. 
 
Pat Gormley, 2433 North 1st Street, said his family owns the property and has had lengthy 
discussions with the Planning staff.  He said he is satisfied with their recommendation and 
requests Council’s approval. 
 
Councilmember Spehar asked Mr. Gormley if other designations like Residential Office or 
Planned Unit Development would also be acceptable.  Mr. Gormley replied that those 
options are open for consideration.  He told Council that this intersection handles 30,000 
cars daily and the noise level on Patterson Road is not conducive to living there.  He said 
there are more appropriate uses along Patterson Road. 
 
Councilmember Spehar said he trusts the Gormleys to develop the property so it is 
compatible with the neighborhood, but that he would be more comfortable if other options 
were applied.  Mr. Gormley disagreed with Councilmember Spehar and said that 
residential development facing Patterson Road would not be appealing to the majority of 
people but some of the mentioned zones are possibilities. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Kirtland noted that once Council designates the parcel as Commercial 
then there would be a process requesting a rezone for a more appropriate use later on.  
Ms. Portner agreed and noted there is a range of commercial options available. 
 
Councilmember Spehar said he was satisfied that the rezone process will address his 
concerns. 
 
Councilmember Spehar moved to adopt Item #20 with a split land use designation for this 
parcel.  Councilmember Butler seconded the motion.  The motion passed by a vote of 5 – 
0. 
 
ITEM # 21:  Ms. Portner reviewed this item and identified the property’s location 
on Crossroads Boulevard and the Interstate.  She said that this request is a two-part 
proposal.  She said the appropriate zone designation for this property is Residential 



City Council Special Meeting____________________       ____________March 26, 2003 
 

 7 

Single Family with two units per acre and the approval of the proposed change would 
make the Future Land Use Map consistent with the Zoning Map.  
 
Ms. Portner explained that in the second proposal the owner requests a change from 
Commercial to Residential High with more than twelve units per acre.  She said the 
Planning Commission recommended to the owner a designation of Residential Medium 
with four to eight units per acre, which would be the same designation as the adjacent 
property to the west.  She said the owner concurred with Staff’s recommendation. 
 
Tom Volkmann representing the W. D. Merkel Family Limited Partnership reiterated that it 
is his client’s desire to have this property designated Residential Medium with four to 
eight units per acre. 

 
Councilmember Spehar moved to approve Item #21 as presented.  Councilmember 
McCurry seconded the motion.  The motion passed by a vote of 5 – 0. 

 
ITEM # 26:  Ms. Portner reviewed this item and identified the property’s location 
on Highway 6 & 50 and 23 Road on the map.  She said the property was originally platted 
as a subdivision.  She explained that the owner requests a change from Industrial to 
Commercial so they can submit a rezoning request. 
 
Kirk Rider, 872 Quail Run Drive, an attorney with Younge & Hockensmith, representing 
the property owner Prime Investments, Ltd., referred to a letter he sent to the Growth Plan 
Update Steering Committee addressing this item.  He told Council that there are good 
reasons to adopt the Planning Commission’s recommendation and that the surrounding 
property owners have no objections to the rezone request.  He said currently there is no 
need for more industrial property, and that even the better industrial properties in town, 
located near the railroad and other transport facilities, aren’t selling.  He reiterated the 
need for commercially zoned properties. 
 
Tom Nowak, partner of Mike Farris, an operator with Chrysler Jeep Dodge said they 
would like to buy the property and build a dealership on that property similar to their 
current facility. 
 
Mr. Rider explained that the dealership is too big to fit on the little parcel and this is why 
they want to purchase this property. 
 
Councilmember Terry asked if the current zoning of Industrial as shown on the Zoning 
Map is the same zoning as the designation on the Land Use Map.  Ms. Portner said the 
surrounding areas are designated as C-I, Light Commercial.  She said both designations 
C-2, Commercial –2, or I-1, Light Industrial could be adopted for the site, and to operate 
an auto dealership either designation would work. 
 



City Council Special Meeting____________________       ____________March 26, 2003 
 

 8 

Mr. Wilson asked Council that the item be tabled to give the parties a chance to discuss 
their request further. 
 
Mr. Rider asked and received clarification on this item.  He said he didn’t think the C-1, 
Light Commercial zoning would be unreasonable. 
 
Councilmember Spehar clarified that lighter commercial uses would not be allowed.  Ms. 
Portner stated that actually almost all C-1, Light Commercial uses are allowed in a C-2, 
Commercial-2 zoning.  
 
It was agreed upon that this new information would make a new recommendation come 
forward. 
 
Councilmember Terry said she wanted the audience to know that this is only a discussion 
and not a negotiation between the parties. 
 
Councilmember Spehar moved to adopt Item #26 of the Discussion Items and change the 
Land Use designation from Industrial to Industrial/Commercial.  Councilmember McCurry 
seconded the motion.  The motion passed by a vote of 5 – 0. 
 
3. Changes to the Future Land Use Map  –  Pear Park Area  
 
ITEM # 5:  Ms. Portner explained this request.  She identified the property’s 
location and the surrounding parcels on the Land Use Map.  She said the property is 
owned by the Railroad and the existing Land Use Map Designation is Residential Medium 
Low with two to four units per acre.  She said the property is currently zoned in the 
County as Industrial and it is utilized for commercial/industrial use.  She said the property 
is adjacent to properties zoned from Light Commercial to Industrial. 
 
Councilmember Terry moved to adopt the proposed Land Use Designation to 
Commercial/ Industrial.  Councilmember McCurry seconded the motion.  The motion 
passed by a vote of 5 – 0. 
 
NON-SCHEDULED CITIZENS & VISITORS 
 
There were none. 
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 
There was none. 



City Council Special Meeting____________________       ____________March 26, 2003 
 

 9 

ADJOURNMENT 
City Council President Pro Tem Kirtland called for the meeting to be adjourned.  The 
meeting was adjourned at 8:15 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
Stephanie Tuin, CMC 
City Clerk 



 
 
 

 
 



 
 

 2 

 
 



 
 

 3 

 
 



 
 

 4 



 
 

 5 



 
 

 6 

 
 


